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Emco Limited

Schedule - U.S.A.

Patents
Appl'n/Patent No.  Title Issue Date
6,279,284 Composite Vapour Barrier Panel Aug. 28, 2001
4,889,170 Cartridge for Faucet Valve Oct. 13, 1887
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Alec 3, Bildy

From: Ritey, Jason [lason. riley @bankofamerica.com)

Seni: Monday, January 14, 2008 12:22 PM

To! Hemant Kandy; Mark Whitley (300 - Emeo Limited)

Cc: Mark Serre; Alec S. Bildy

T Sertificate from BofA
ley@bankofarmerica.com).vef
Hemant,

All of the conditions of the payof letter have been satistied.

Per discussion with our attomey, this e-mail couple with the payoff leftter should allow you to terminate BoiA's
registrations on your securities,

Please don't hesitate to contact me with any inquiries in the future. It has been a pleasure working with everyone
at BP of Canada.

Jason

Jason Ritey

Bank of America Business Capital - Senior Vice President
20075 Swenson Drive, Suite 200

Waukesha, Wi 53186

Jason.Riley@bankofamerica.com

Phone: 262-788-4876, Fax: 282-788-4882

From: Memant Kandy [mailto:hkandy@bpcan.com}
Sent: Monday, January 14, 2008 10:52 AM

To: Mark Whitley (300 - Emco Limited); Riley, Jason
Cc: Mark Serre; Alec Bildy

Subject: Final Clearance Certificate from BofA

Dear Gentiemen,

| pelieve all the 3 conditions on the BofA Payoff letter, duly execuled, are now met. At this point, { think it would be
appropriate to request Mr Riley to send us.an 'all clearance ietter’, releasing all securities. :

| understand that once we receive the final ¢learance certificate forrm BofA, Mr Whitley and his team can praceea :
to undo the registrations of all BofA securities. .

Kindly advice if different than what | have described above.

Thanks

Hemant Kandy

Building Products of Canada Corp
hkandy@bpcan.com

ph (514) 364 7671, fx (514) 364 0130

-—=QOriginal Message-—-
From: Mark Whitiey [maiito:MWhitley@emcoltd.com]
Sent: Monday, January 14, 2008 11:18 AM

2/4/2008
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s

To: ‘Riley, Jason’

Ce Hemant Kandy; Mark Serre; "Alec Bildy'

Subject: RE: RE : Bullding Products of Canada Corp - Discontinuation of ou v current Credit Faciiity on
12/31/07

Thanks Jason. Attached is the letter as signed by BP. I believe that this now concludes the BP
loan agreement with BofA and RBC, but if there is anything outstanding please let us know.
Mark

From: Riley, Jason [mailto:jason.riley@bankofamerica.com]

Sent: Wednesday, January 03, 2008 11:44 AM

To: Mark Whitley

Cc: Hemant Kandy; Mark Serre

Subject: RE: RE : Bullding Products of Canada Corp - Discontinuation of ou 1 curtent Credit Facllity on
12/31/07

Mark,

Enclosed is the payoff leiter executed by BofA, reflecting the lztest version you sentto me on Friday.
Please send the fully executed version when it is available.

Thanks,
Jason

Jason Riley

Bank of America Business Capital - Senior Vice Presldent
20975 Swenson Drive, Suite 200

Waukesha, Wi 53186

Jason Riley@hhankofamerica.coim

Phone: 262-798-4878, Fax: 262-795-4882

2/4/2008
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1t (os émendaﬁ, fhe “Loun Asreemeni”} dated ag of
dlging Prodncis of Comada Corp. (under its former

ois Corp.) (the “Borrower™), as borrower, and Banl of

3, acting through its Canada Branch, and Reyai Bank
fvely, the “Eenders™) and Bank of America, Natiopal
5 Camnds Braneh, as sgent (the “Agent™) wod others

We mdcrsmnd that on January 3, 2008 the Berrower intends to rapay all of its -

indebitednese and obligations to the Agem zmd fhe Lenders nnder the Loan Agxeemeﬂt aud that,

from and after the date hereof, you will no fonger réqmest Barrowings {gs such temn is defined in

fhe Loan Agmement). Accerdingly, pleass be advised that the wotal indebiedness and relaed

obligations owing to the Agentand the Lepders by the Borrower under the Loan Agreement ssof

the date hereof are the sum of (fhe “Payoff Amtount”) (8} Cdn.§56,71233 in respect of the

nnpsed line fee, () Cdnbd, 246, 58 letter of credit feg (o} Cdm. 33,641 75 in respect of Ogoiley

Renanlt LLF expenses and {d) confingent obhgaums in respect of the leter of credit described
in Scheduie "A" (the "Letter of Credit").

"Upon the receipt by the Agent (he datg of eceipt of all of the following be:mg the
. "Payout Dm") oft

O " a copy of this Jetter signed back by the Borrower,
(i)  the original Letter of Credit (if available fom The Bank of Nova Scotia), and

Gy fhe receipt of the Payoff Amount on. or before 3:00 p.an. Toromio Tims, by wire

transfer as follows: )
Can369,600,66 to Bask of Ameries, N.A. (aciing through ity Cansda
braneh):

Uy h

TER DA
15 rerpg Teon, Fooydnd Foper

DOUETOR: 14015972
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LVTS —Large Value Transacton System '

TOTHD
AtiH; LOADS Ueparement
Swift Coder : BORACATT
Temsit# © 01312241
Account #: ' 90083355 ‘
Ref: Building Products of Canada Corp.

the Agent aud the Borowss hareﬁy ngree a5 follows!

(8  any and all.Hens and seonrity Inferests which the Ageat or the ngzziars presently .
hold(s) in any assets of the Borrower o secuie the Obligations (as defined in-the
Loan Apresment) (col_iective]y, the *Secugity") shall be released and discharged;

and

() the Borrower shall kave filly and ﬁﬁaﬂy peid

defined in the Loan Agreemsnt},

el performed tis Obiigations (as .

* Upon compliance with the conditions for the- Agent's r%leasa hawiusbove provided, fe
Agent irrevocdbly authorizes the Borrower’s counsel ridl fts apents to forfhwith exconde and

 rogister all such docurnents, instruments, deeds, staternents and ofiier writings ag 18 necessary or

required fo be exoowted md registéced, as the-case may be, to Gischarge all of the registrations, -
‘fifings and recordings against the Borrower.in respect of the Secuity. -

DATED as of {his 9% day of Tamary, 2008.

R
* MELSON LA
VIGE PRESIBENT
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RELEASE BY THE BORROWER

Upon compliance with the conditions for the Agent’s releass hereinphove provided, all of -
= ey ooy oiligations end liabilities under the Loan Agrecnoent, eud the Losn
n fhe Lom Agreement) shell b terminated, The Borrower forever
. the Ageit and the Lenders, and their affitistes, officars, directors,
ernployees, agents and representatives of mnd from any and gll costs, luims, proceedings and.
Yinbilities for any aet or thing-done or not done'on or prior o the date hereot, lnclnding, without
Jimitation, under or fo comnsetion with the Loan Agreornent, any of the documents referred {6

~ therein, smdfor suy 0f the credit facilities thesein desprbed.

. The Bomower, for md in consideration of the maticrs deseribed hersin, by affixing its
signature heveon, does heréby confirm all of the matters comained hereln, .

4
DATED.es of this /Y day of January, 2008,

BUILDING PRODUCTS OF CANADA CORF,

P | Al OIS
Neme: 'yl i//fa T8 <
Title: | gTCAEIANy [ GENHNW, LOardS -

PATENT
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Beneficiary:

LS Aot

L/ Bxpiry

Matwre of LC:

DOCSTOR: M81552

SCBEDU_LE_ A

HB102706/04

s Building Producie Corp. ) o
P.0, Box 5254, 620 Richmond Street
London, Ontaric N6A 519

The Bank of Nova Seotia
40 King Street West

- Beotia Plazs, 62nd Flobr

Torpute, Onterio MSW-2X6

CAD 5,000,000.00

December 31, 2007

"Drawings hereander may be made by‘yw in respect of overdrafis

outstanding to Bmeo Building Producis Corp, and/er its subsidiaties aud/or
its afflates" » ‘
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,COLLATERAL PATENT SECURITY AGREEMENT

THIS COLLATERAL PATENT SECURITY AGREEMENT (the “Patent Security
Agreement™) made as of the 1% day of January, 2002 by EMCO BUILDING PRODUCTS
I.TD., having an office at 620 Richmond Street, London, Ontario N6A 5319 (“Company™) in
favor of BANK OF AMERICA, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION (acting through its Canada
bovm B e Amees S - eqpacity “Agent™), having an office at 200 Front Street West,

M5V 31.2 for itself and the benefit of the banks and other

s (the “Lenders”™) from time to time parties to the Loan and

Security Agreement dated as of November 15, 2000, (as amended, restated, sopplemented or

otherwise modified from time to time, the “Loan Agreement”}, among Emco Limited
(“Borrower”), Agent and the Lenders.

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, Agent, the Lenders and Borrower have entered into the Loan Agreement
providing for Lenders to make certain Loans and extend other financial accommodations to
Borrower (Capitalized terms used but not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
given such terms in the Loan Agreement.);

WHEREAS, Company is a wholly-owned Subsidiary of Borrower and has guaranieed
the obligations of Borrower under the Loan Agreement; :

WHEREAS, Company has granted a security interest to Bank of America Canada
("BACAN") in certain of iis assets pursuant to the Security Agreement dated as of December
31, 2001 by Company in favor of BACAN, which agreement was assigned to the Agent on
January 1, 2002 (the “Security Agreement”); and

WHEREAS, it is a condition precedent to the méking of the Loans under the Loan
Agreement by Lenders that Company shall have granted the security interest and made the
collateral assignment contemplated by this Patent Security Agreement;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and in order to induce Lenders
to make Loans under the Loan Agreement, Company hereby agrees with Agent and its
successors, transferees and assigns as follows:

I. Grant Of Security Interest. To secure the prompt and complete payment, observance
and performance of all of the Obligations (as defined in the Security Agreement),
Company hereby grants, morigages, pledges and hypothecaies fo and creates a
security interest in favour of Agent, and its successors, transferees and assigns, for
itself and for the benefit of all Lenders, as and by way of a first morigage and security
interest having priority over all other security interests, with power of sale as
hereinafler provided, to the extent permitted by law, with respect to all of the
following property of Company, whether now owned or existing or hereafter acquired
or arising (collectively, the “Collateral™):

PATENT
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(a) . all of Company’s rights, title and interests in its patents and applications for
which registrations have been issued or applied for in the United States Patent
and Trademark Office and the Patent Office of the Canadian Intellectual
Property Office, or used in the United States, Canada or any state, province,
territory or possession of either thereof, including, without limitation, the
inventions and improvements described and claimed therein, including,
withont limitation, those listed on Annex A, and all rights and interests under

Agreements {both as licensee and licensor), including, without

¢ listed on Annex B, each attached hereto and made a part
hereof and (i) the reissues, divisions, continuations, renewals, extensions and
continuations-in-part thereof, (ii) all income, royaliies, damages and payments
now or hereafier due and/or payable under and with respect thereto, including,
without linitation, payments under all licenses entered into in connection
therewith and damages and payments for past or future infringements thereof
but excluding attorneys’ fees and court costs payable to Company in respect
thereto, (iif) the right to sue for past, present and future infringements thereof,
and (iv) all rights corresponding thereto throughout the world (all of the
foregoing patents and patent applications, and interests under Patent License
Agreements, together with the items described in clauses (i) through (iv) in
this subparagraph {(a), are sometimes hereinafter individually and/or
collectively referred to as the “Patents™); and

{(b)  the goodwill of Company’s business connected with the Patents.

Collateral Purposes. Notwiithstanding the terms and provisions of Section 1 above,
this grant shall be for collateral purposes only. Unless an Event of Default shall have
occurred and be continuing, Company shall retain the right to use the Collateral, for
Company’s own benefit and account. Upon the occurrence and during the
continuance of any Event of Default, Company’s rights to use the Collateral as set
forth in this paragraph shall terminate automatically without any requirement of
notice to Company of such termination, and the Agent shall thereupon have, in
addition to all other rights and remedies given it by this Agreement, those allowed by
the federal laws of the United States and Canada and the rights and remedies of a
secured party under the Uniform Commiercial Code, the Personal Property Security
Act (or the Civil Code of Quebec), as applicable, as enacted in any jurisdiction in
which any of the Collateral may be located.

Restrictions on Future Agreements. Company agrees that during the existence and
continuation of an Event of Default and until all of Borrower’s obligations shall have
been satisfied in full and the Loan Agreement shall have been terminated, Company
will not, without Agent’s prior written consent, abandon any Patent or enter into any
agreement, except with Company’s Affiliates, including, without limitation, any
license agreement, which is inconsistent with Company’s obligations under this
Patent Security Agreement if such actions would materially adversely affect the fair
market value of the Collateral or the benefits of this Patent Security Agreement
granted to Agent including, without limitation, the priority or perfection of the

PATENT
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security interest granted herein or the remedies of Agent hereunder, and Company
further agrees that during the existence and continuation of an Event of Default it will
not take any action, or permit any action to be taken by others subject 1o its control,
including lcensees, or fail to take any action, which would affect the validity or
enforcement of the rights fransferred or granted to Agent under this Patent Security
Agreement and any such agreement or action if it shall take place shall be null and
void and of no effect whatsoever.

ny represents and warrants that the patents listed on Annex A
and on Annex B constitute all of the patents and applications now owned by or
licensed to or by Company for which registrations have been issued or applied for in
the patent office of the Canadian Intellectual Property Office and the United States
Patent and Trademark Office. If, before the Borrower’s obligations have been
satisfied in full and the Loan Agreement terminated, Company shall (i) obtaiz rights
to any new patentable inventions, or (ii) become entitled to the benefit of any patent
application or patent for any reissued division, continuation, renewal, extension or
contribution-in-part of any Patent or any improvement in any Patent, or of any Patent
License Agreement, the provisions of Section 1 above shall automatically apply
thereto and Company shall give to Agent prompt written notice thereof Company
hereby authorizes Agent to modify this Patent Security Agreement by amending
Annex A and Annex B to include any future patents, patent applications and Patent
License Agreements which are Patents, as applicable, under Section 1 above or under
this Section 4.

Additional Representations and Warranties. Company hereby represents, warrants,
covenants and agrees that;

(a) It has the full right and power to grant the security interest in the Collateral
made hereby.

(b)  Except to its- Affiliates and for Permitted Liens, it has made no previous
assignment, transfer or agreements in conflict herewith or constituting a
present or future assigninent, transfer, or encumbrance on any of the Collateral
except for license agreements to use such Patents granted to licensees
described on Annex B hereto,

(¢) (i) There is no financing statement or other document or instument now
signed or on file in any public office covering any part of the Coliateral,
except those showing Agent as secured party or related to Permitted Liens, and
(ii) so long as any of Borrower’s obligations remain outstanding under the
Loan Agreement or the Loan Apgreement has not terminated, it will not
execute, and it shall not permit there to be on file in any public office, any
such financing statement or other document or instruments, except financing
statements on file or to be filed in favour of Agent or related to Permitted
Liens.

PATENT
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(d)  Subject to any limitations stated therein or in connection therewith, all
information furnished to Agent or the other Lenders concerning the Collateral
and proceeds thersof, for the purpose of obtaining credit or an extension of
credit, is, or will be at the time the same is furnished, accurate and correct in
all material respects.

Intentionallv Deleted.

f any agreement to which the Company is presently a party
contains a provision that prohibits or limits Company’s righis to grant a security
interest or provides that any Collateral specified herein may not be pledged,
hypothecated, assigned or otherwise encumbered without the leave, license, consent
or approval {(collectively, the “Consent™} of the other party to such agreement, the
security interest created hereby shall be conditioned upon such Consent having been
obtained. Company hereby represents that all agreements requiring such Consents are
listed in Annex C to this Patent Security Agreement.

Royalties; Terms. Company hereby agrees that any rights to use granted hereunder
by Agent and its successors, transferees and assigns with respect to all Collateral as
described above shall be worldwide (to the extent Company has such rights) and
without any liability for royalties or other related charges from Agent or Lenders,
ratably, to Company. The term of the security interest granted herein shall exiend
unti] the earlier of (i) the expiration or termination of each of the Patents covered
hereby or (ii) all Borrower's obligations have been paid in full and the Loan
Agreement has been terminated.

Agent’s Right to Inspect. Agent shall have the right, vpon reasonable notice and from
time to time, to inspect Company’s premises and to examine Company’s books,
records and operations. Unless Agent reasonably determines that to do so would be
adverse to its interests, Agent will give Company reasonable advance notice and
make any inspections during Company’s normal business hours.

Release of Security Interest.

()  This Patent Security Agreement is made for collateral purposes only. Upon
payment in full of all of Borrower’s obligations and termination of the Loan
Apreement, Agent shall, at Company’s sole cost and expense, execuie and
deliver to Company all termination statements, releases, assignments and other
instruments as may be necessary or proper to re-vest in Company full title to
the Collateral granted hereby, subject to any disposition thereof which may
have been made by Agent pursuant hereto or pursuant to the Security
Agreement,

(b)  Upon any sale, assignment, lease or other disposition of all or any part of the
Collateral permitted by the Loan Agreement or in connection with the sale,
assignment, lease or other disposition of assets permitted by the Security
Agreement, with application of the proceeds thereof made in accordance with

PATENT
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the Security Agreement, Agent acknowledges and agrees that the security
interest in the Collateral granted hereby shall be released and that it shall
execute and deliver to Company all fermination statements and other
documents and instruments as may be necessary or desirable to fully reiease
the security interest in such Collateral granted hereby.

Duties of Company. During the existence and continuation of an Event of Default
Company shall have the duty (i) to prosecute diligently any
is part of the Patents pending as of the date hereof or thereafier

until all Borrower obligations shall have been paid in full and the Loan Agreement

shall have been terminated, (ii) to make application for unpatented but patentable
inventions as appropriate and (ii) to preserve and maintain all rights in patent
applications and Patents, in each case to the extent such items are still used or useful
in the business of Company, or that the failure to do so would materially adversely
effect the fair market value of the Collateral or the benefits of this Patent Security

Agreement granted to Agent including, without limitation, the priority or perfection

of the security interest granted herein or the remedies of Agent hereunder; (b) any

expenses incurred in connection with such applications shall be borne by Company;

{c) Company agrees to retain a registered patent attorney approved by Agent for the

filing and prosecution of all such applications and other proceedings at the time of

such filing or prosecution; and (d) Company shall not abandon any right to file a

patent application or any pending patent application without the consent of Agent.

If Company fails to comply with any of the foregoing duties, Agent may do so in
Company’s name to the extent permitted by law, but at Company’s expense, and
Company hereby agrees to reimburse Agent in full for all expenses, including the
reasonable fees and disbursements of counsel incurred by Agent in protecting,
defending and maintaining the Collateral.

In the event that Company shall fail to pay when due any fees required to be paid by it
hereunder, or shall fail to discharge any lien or security interest prohibited hereby, or
shall fail to comply with any other duty hereunder, Agent may, but shall not be
required to, pay, satisfy, discharge or bond the same for the account of Company, and
all moneys so paid out shall be Obligations repayable on demand, together with
interest at the rate of interest applicable to Loans under the Loan Agreement.

Company firther agfees that for so long as no Event of Default exists Company will
at all times maintain, preserve and protect the Collateral to the extent consistent with
prudent and reasonable business practices.

Remedies; Right to Sue, Upon the pcourrence and during the continuance of an Event
of Default, Agent’s remedies shall be as set forth in the Security Agreement. In
addition to the foregoing, upon the occurrence and during the continuance of an Event
of Default, Agent and its successors, transferees and assigns shall have the right, but
shall in no way be obligated, to bring suit in their own name to enforce the Patents,
and any licenses thereunder, and, if Agent or any such other party shall commence
any such suit, Company shall, at the request of Agent or such other party, do any and

PATENT
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all lawful acts and exscute any and all proper documents required by Agent or such
other party in aid of such enforcement and Company shall promptly, upon demand,
reimburse and indemnify Agent or such other party for all costs and expenses
incurred by Agent or such other party in the exercise of their rights under this Section
12. Agent shall have for the benefit of Lenders, in addition to all other rights of
Agent and Lenders, the rights and remedies of a secured party under applicable law
(UCC, PPSA, Civil Code of Quebec or federal laws of Canada or the United States)
‘e the Collateral is located,

waivers, ™o course of dealing between Company and Agent or any of their
respective successors, iransferees and assigns, nor any failure to exercise, nor any
delay in exercising, on the part of Agent or any such other party, any right, power or
privilege hereunder or under the Security Agreement shall operate as a waiver
thereof; nor shall any single or partial exercise of any right, power or privilege
hereunder or thereunder preciude any other or further exercise thereof or the exercise
of any other right, power or privilege.

Severability. The provisions of this Patent Security Agreement are severable, and if
any clause or provision shall be held invalid and unenforceable in whole or in part in
any jurisdiction, then such invalidity or unenforceability shall affect only such clause
or provision, or part thereof, in such jurisdiction, and shall not in any manner affect
such clause or provision in any other jurisdiction, or any other clause or provision of
this Patent Security Agreement in any jurisdiction. If the security interest granted
hereunder would be unenforceable under applicable law, such security interest shall -
be valid and enforceable to the maximum extent that would not cause such security
amterest to be unenforceable under applicable Jaw and this Agreement shall be deemed

. to be automatically amended accordingly at all times.

Modification. This Patent Security Agreement cannot be altered, amended or
modified in any way, except as specifically provided in Section 4 hereof or by a
writing signed by the parties hersto,

Curulative Remedies; Power of Attorney; Effect on Security Agreement. All of the
rights and remedies of Agent, the other Lenders and their successors, transferees and
assigns with respect to the Collateral, whether established hereby or by the Security
Agreement, or by any other agreements or by law shall be cumulative and may be
exercised singularly -or concurrently, Company hereby authorizes Agent to make,
constitute and appoint any officer or agent of Agent as Agent may select, in its sole
discretion, as Company’s true and lawful attorney-in-fact, with power (i) so long as
any Event of Default has occwred and is continuing or an Availability Event has ever
occurred unless an Availability Event Cure has subsequently occurred (provided no
Availability Event or Event of Default shall have occurred subsequent to such
Availability Event Cure), to endorse Company’s name on all applications, documents,
papers and instraments necessary or desirable for Agent in the use of the Collateral,
or to grant or issue any exclusive or non-exclusive license under the Collateral to
anyone, or to assign, pledge, hypothecate, convey or otherwise transfer title in or
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dispose of the Collateral to anyone free and clear of any encumbrance upon title
thereof created after the date of this Patent Security Apgreement, and (ii) so long as.
any Event of Defauit has occurred and is continuing or an Availability Event has ever
ocourred unless an Availability Event Cure has subsequently ocourred (provided no
Availability Event or Event of Default shall have occurred subsequent to such
Availability Event Cure) and from time to time to take any other actions with respect
tn the Collateral as Apent reasonably deems in its best interests. Agent hereby ratifies

n-fact shall lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue hereof,

r, being coupled with an interest, shall be irrevocable until all
Borrower obligations shall have been paid in full and the Loan Agreement has been
terminated. Company acknowledges and agrees that this Patent Security Agreement
is not intended to limit or restrict in any way the rights and remedies of Agent, the
other Lenders or their successors, transferees and assigns under the Security
Agreement but rather is infended to facilitate the exercise of such rights and remedies.
Agent and such other parties shall have, in addition to all other rights and remedies
given it or them by the terms of this Patent Security Agreement, all rights and
remedies allowed by law and the rights and remedies of a secured party under the
Uniform Commercial Code and the Personal Property Security Act, each as enacted
in any jurisdiction in which the Patents may be located. Recourse to security will not
be required at any time,

Care of Collateral. Agent shall be deemed to have exercised reasonable care in the
custody and preservation of the Collateral if it takes such action for that purpose as
Company shall request in writing, but failure of Agent to comply with any such
request shall not of itself be deemed 2 failure 1o exercise reasonable care, and no
failure of Agent to preserve or protect any rights with respect to the Collateral against
prior parties, or to do any act with respect to preservation of the Collateral not so
requested by Company shall be deemed a failure to exercise reasonable care in the
custody or preservation of the Collateral unless such failure is the result of gross
negligence or willful misconduct, '

Certain Righis Regarding Collateral and Borrower Obligations. Agent may, upon the
occurrence and during the continnance of an Event of Default or upon Agent’s
exercise of its rights under Sections 11.2(a)(iv) or 11.2(a)(v) of the Loan Agreement,
without notice to Company, take all or any of the following actions: (a) transfer all or
any part of the Collateral into the name of Agent or its nominee, with or without
disclosing that such Collateral is subjectto the lien and security interest hereunder, (b)
notify the parties obligated on any of the Collateral to make payment to Agent of any
amounts due or to become due hereunder, (c) enforce collection of any of the
Collateral by suit or otherwise, and swrender, release or exchange all or any part
thereof, or compromise or extend or renew for any period (whether or not longer than
the original period) any obligations of any nature of any party with respect thereto and
{d) take coritrol of any proceeds of the Collateral. Agent may, furthermore, from time
to time, whether before or afier any of the Borrower obligations shall become due and
payable, without notice to Company, take all or any of the following actions: (a)
retain or obtain a security interest in any property, in addition to the Collateral, to
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secure any of the Borrower obligations, (b) retain or obtain the primary or secondary
liability of any party or parties, in addition to Company with respect to any of the
Borrower obligations, (c) extend or renew for any period (whether or not longer than
the original period) or exchange any of the Borrower obligations or release or
compromise any obligation of any nature of any party with respect thereto, (d)
surrender, release or exchange all or any part of any property, in addition to the
Collataral earurina any of the Borrower obligations, or compromise or extend or
whether or not longer than the original period} any obligations
i _ arty with respect 10 any such property, and (e) resort to the
Collateral for payment of any of the Borrower obligations, if and to the extent
permitted by the Loan Agreement, whether or not it shall have resorted to any other
property securing the Borrower obligations or shall have proceeded against any party
primarily or secondarily liable on any of the Borrower obligations.

Binding Effect; Benefits. This Patent Security Agreement shall be binding upon
Company and its respective successors and assigns, and shall inure to the benefit of
Agent and its respective successors, transferees and assigns. No realization by Agent
of its rights under this Agreement shall entitle Company, by subrogation or otherwise,
to any payment by Borrower or from or out of any property of Borrower, and
Company irrevocably waives any right or remedy against Borrower or any property of
Borrower including, without limitation, any right of contribution or reimbursement by
reason of any realization by Agent of its rights under this Agreement. The provisions
of this paragraph shall survive the termination of this Agreement or the release or
discharge of Company from liability hereunder. Company, Agent and Lenders
hereby agree that Borrower is and shall be a third party beneficiary of the provisions
of this paragraph.

Governing Law. This Patent Security Agreement shall be governed by and construed
in accordance with the laws of the Province of Ontario and the laws of Canada
applicable therein.

Notice. The provisions of the Security Agreement shall govern in respect of notices
or communications contemplated hereunder or given in connection herewith.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly execuied and delivered this
Patent Security Agreement as of the day first above written.

EMCO BUILDING PRODUCTS L'TD.

By: B%:\

Name: BRAD ZATNER
Title: NESISIANT TREASUR L

By: Al v

Name: BSARK B WhNT
Title: BECRETARY

BANK OF AMERICA NATIONAL
ASSOCIATION, by its Canada Branch, as
Agent

Name: J@Qp( Wfd(j\
Title:  \lice YO denf
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Collateral Patent

ANNEX A
to

Dated as of January 1, 2002

Patenis and Applications

Security Agreement

LIeSCrIpnon Inventor Number Date
Composite Vapour Guy Moras 2226595 January 12, 1998
Barrier Panel
LS. Patents:

Description Inventor Number Date

Composite Vapor Guy Moras 227535 Janary 11, 1999

Barrier Panel
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ANNEX B
to
Collateral Patent Security Agreement
Dated as of January 1, 2002

Patent License Agreement

None
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ANNEX C
to
Collateral Patent Sécurity Agreement
Dated as of January 1, 2002

Required Consents

None

RACHenf\ 2802\ (WDocs\oollateral patent sec agt {emcobp).3.dma.doe

PATENT
REEL: 021901 FRAME: 0855



515 ¢, w2

Enco LIMITED

ASSIGNMENT
OrF

SECURITY AGREEMENT
(Patents)

This agreement ("Agreement”) daied as of January 1, 2002, between:

Bank of America Canada, a bank duly constituted under Schedule Il of the
Bank Act (Canada) and having its principal place of business at 200 Front Street West,
Suite 2700, Toronto, Ontario, Canada M5V 3L2, hereinafier the "Assignor”; and

Bank of America, Nationai Association, a national banking association
authorized to carry on business in Canada as an "authorized foreign bank” under the
Bank Act (Canada) and having its principal place of business at 200 Front Street West,
Suite 2700, Toronto, Ontario, Canada M5V 3L.2, hereinafter the “Assignee”;

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS Assignor, is the collateral agent (the "Agent”) in a loan agreement
with Emco Limited (the “Grantor”) and also in the related security agreement dated
November 15, 2000, which agreement includes as collateral all of the patents listed in

the attached schedule(s),

NOW THEREFORE Assignor hereby declares that for good and valuable
consideration, the receipt and adequacy of which is hereby acknowledged, Assignor
hereby sells, assigns and transfers unto Assignee, its successars and assigns, the sole
and entire right, title and interest in and to the said security agreement in Canada, the

United States of America and all ciher countries;
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Assignment of Security Agreement
Page 2

Assignor and Assignee hereby appoint OGILVY RENAULT whose complete
address in Canada is Suite 1600, 1981 McGill Coliege Avenue, Montréal, Québec,
Canada H3A 2Y3, Tel. {(514) 845-7126, Fax. (514) 288-8389, as their agents to proceed
with the recordal of this assignment in the relevant government offices in respect of all of

ached schedule(s).

Signed at Toront 4 O"\}Jw T , this }g"} day of Jams ry 2002

Bank of America Canada

Ll

NaQe 1efﬁei/ D. Burdon

Title: Mice President

Signed at %ﬁ , QZU&%V& , this ;1 sj’day of M

200 |

Bank of America, National Association

'

~ NamgAled Cox '
Title: Authonzed Signing Officer

¢ rem bt = n
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AppP'n/Patent No.

2,226,595
1,202,293
1,182,029

Emco Limited

Schedule -~ Canada
Patents

Title
Composite Vapour Barrier Panel

Cartridge for Faucet Valve
Backwater Drain Valve

Issue Date

Jan. 12, 1998
Mar. 25, 1986
Feb. 5, 1985

i 2 fme trd o e i s e~
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
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